
 

 

 
Date of issue: Monday 8th January 2018 

 
  

MEETING: NEIGHBOURHOODS AND COMMUNITY SERVICES 
SCRUTINY PANEL 

 (Councillors Plenty (Chair), Kelly (Vice Chair), Bal, 
Davis, N Holledge, Parmar, Rasib, Sharif and Wright) 

  
DATE AND TIME: TUESDAY, 16TH JANUARY, 2018 AT 6.30 PM 
  
VENUE: HAWKER HOUSE, HEATHROW WEST BUSINESS 

PARK, HERON DRIVE, LANGLEY, SLOUGH, SL3 8XP 
  
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
OFFICER: 
(for all enquiries) 

DAVID GORDON 
 
01753 875411 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are requested to attend the above Meeting at the time and date indicated to deal 
with the business set out in the following agenda. 
 

 
NEIL WILCOX 

Director of Finance & Resources 
 

AGENDA 
 

PART I 
 
AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT TITLE PAGE WARD 

 Apologies for absence.   
 
1.   Declarations of Interest   

 All Members who believe they have a Disclosable Pecuniary 
or other Pecuniary or non pecuniary Interest in any matter to 
be considered at the meeting must declare that interest and, 
having regard to the circumstances described in Section 3 
paragraphs 3.25 – 3.27 of the Councillors’ Code of Conduct, 
leave the meeting while the matter is discussed, save for 
exercising any right to speak in accordance with Paragraph 
3.28 of the Code.  
 
The Chair will ask Members to confirm that they do not have 
a declarable interest. All Members making a declaration will 

  



 
AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT TITLE PAGE WARD 

 

 

be required to complete a Declaration of Interests at 
Meetings form detailing the nature of their interest. 
 

CONSTITUTIONAL MATTERS 
 
2.   Minutes of the last meeting held on 2nd November 

2017 
 

1 - 8  

3.   Action Progress Report 
 

9 - 10 All 

4.   Member Questions   
 An opportunity for panel members to ask questions of the 

relevant Director / Assistant Director, relating to pertinent, 
topical issues affecting their Directorate – maximum of 10 
minutes allocated. 
 

  

SCRUTINY ISSUES 
 
5.   Neighbourhood and Housing Scrutiny Overview 

Indicators 
 

11 - 32 All 

6.   Five Year Plan - Priority 5 Make Best Use of 
Existing Public Sector Housing Stock 
 

33 - 40 All 

7.   Emergency Plan 
 

41 - 44 All 

8.   Development Initiative Slough Housing 
 

45 - 48 All 

9.   2018/19 Housing Rents And Service Charges 
 

49 - 54 All 

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 
 
10.   Forward Work Programme 

 
55 - 58 All 

11.   Attendance Record 2017 - 18 
 

59 - 60  

12.   Date of Next Meeting – 1st March 2018   
 

Press and Public 
You are welcome to attend this meeting which is open to the press and public, as an observer. You will 
however be asked to leave before the Committee considers any items in the Part II agenda.  Please 
contact the Democratic Services Officer shown above for further details. 
 
The Council allows the filming, recording and photographing at its meetings that are open to the public.  
By entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed and 
to the possible use of those images and sound recordings.  Anyone proposing to film, record or take 
photographs of a meeting is requested to advise the Democratic Services Officer before the start of the 
meeting.  Filming or recording must be overt and persons filming should not move around the meeting 
room whilst filming nor should they obstruct proceedings or the public from viewing the meeting.  The use 
of flash photography, additional lighting or any non hand held devices, including tripods, will not be 
allowed unless this has been discussed with the Democratic Services Officer. 

 



 

 

Neighbourhoods and Community Services Scrutiny Panel – Meeting held on 
Thursday, 2nd November, 2017. 

 
Present:-  Councillors Plenty (Chair), Anderson (from 6.38pm), Davis, Mann, 

Swindlehurst (from 6.36pm) and Wright 
  

In attendance for item 30 
(held jointly with Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee):- 

Councillors Sadiq, Parmar, Sarfraz and A Sandhu 

  

Apologies for Absence:- Councillors Kelly, N Holledge and Rasib 
 

 
PART 1 

 
26. Declarations of Interest  

 
No declarations were provided in relation to the business to be considered at 
the meeting. 
 

27. Minutes of the last meeting held on 7th September 2017  
 
Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on 7th September 2017 be 

approved as a correct record. 
 

28. Action Progress Report  
 
Resolved: That the update on progress made on actions be noted. 
 

29. Member Questions  
 
(At this point, Cllr Swindlehurst entered the meeting). 
 
Fixed Penalty Notices had ceased, as they had not been cost effective. Even 
the potential increase in the amount levied on offenders may not alter this; 
however, the situation was not yet entirely clear and was one which members 
may wish to continue to monitor. 
 
(At this point, Cllr Anderson entered the meeting). 
 
Payments under the Incentives Scheme totalled approximately £250,000. 
These could also be used to augment the Homelessness Prevention Strategy; 
as a result, the issue would be discussed further under an agenda item on the 
matter scheduled for 18th January 2018. 
 
The extent to which fly tipping was caused by private individuals, commercial 
enterprises and the turnover of housing was unclear. In addition, the tools 
available to Slough Borough Council (SBC) to stop fly tipping were unclear. 
As a result, the Panel requested that an agenda item on the issue be taken on 
4th April 2018. 

AGENDA ITEM 2

Page 1



Neighbourhoods and Community Services Scrutiny Panel - 02.11.17 

 

 
The extent to which SBC was encouraging staff to move away from car 
usage, or was ensuring that its policies were co-ordinated at a corporate level 
to emphasise environmental concerns, was questioned. As a result, the Panel 
asked for an agenda item on this to be taken on 4th April 2018; this would also 
have a view towards commissioning further research. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That an agenda item on fly tipping be added to the agenda for 4th April 
2018. 

2. That an agenda item on establishing SBC as ‘an exemplar green 
Council’ (with a view to commissioning a Task & Finish Group) be 
added to the agenda for 4th April 2018. 

 
30. Update On The Review Of The Local Plan 2013 - 2036  

 
The existence of a Local Plan was a legal requirement for local authorities; 
the Plan had to be reviewed every 5 years. The Plan also had to cover a 20 
year period. The Issues and Options Report had been produced in early 2017 
and been put out to consultation.  
 
The overall vision was for Slough to be a place where residents would want to 
‘live, work, rest, play and stay’. In particular, the issue of staying was 
emphasised as Slough had traditionally had a particularly transient population. 
The option which had been most contentious had been the Northern 
expansion into South Buckinghamshire. This had seen numerous individual 
objections lodged as was as the threat of legal action. However, SBC’s 
preferred spatial option had been formed and retained this as part of it. 
 
Sites for housing had been identified, whilst the local economy also required 
short term and long term protection. The intensification of the suburbs was 
also a central theme of the Plan, whilst protect of green areas would also be 
borne in mind. SBC was committed to avoiding the spread of infill 
development altering the balance of areas; these various considerations had 
been included in the preferred strategy. An area of particular focus would be a 
square mile in the heart of Slough; this included new flats, shopping and the 
regeneration of Queensmere. Meanwhile, other areas (e.g. Langley, 
Cippenham) had been selected for further development. 
 
Areas in need of particular attention in recent months had been Heathrow and 
the local housing market. Heathrow was in need of mitigation from 1st 
November 2017 onwards, whilst the Northern expansion was crucial in 
rebalancing the local housing market (e.g. suitable accommodation for 
families). The expansion would also require schools, local shops, surgeries 
and similar amenities to make it a functioning community. As a result, this 
made SBC’s Local Plan more susceptible to external factors than most, as 
well as being subject to the impact of decisions made by external investors.  
 
Once the overall strategy was completed, the Plan was vital to its 
implementation. However, the 3rd runway at Heathrow would need to be 

Page 2



Neighbourhoods and Community Services Scrutiny Panel - 02.11.17 

 

completed first; by this time, the final form of the Northern expansion could 
also be clear. This, however, did mean the enacting of the Local Plan would 
be delayed. In addition, Queensmere and the Observatory were to be 
demolished. They would be replaced with 50 shops, a cinema, parking and 
leisure facilities, but this transition period was currently estimated at 3 years. 
 
The Panel raised the following points in discussion: 
 

• Flats would only be built in very specifically selected areas of 
Cippenham. However, it was not categorised as suburban and 
therefore would not be protected in the same manner as such 
locations. 

• The Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead oppose the 3rd runway 
at Heathrow. However, this should not hamper the Local Plan as the 
affected sites were not as extensive as the Northern expansion. In 
addition, SBC was opposed to their Local Plan given the absence of 
social housing. Whilst South Buckinghamshire were currently 
protecting their green belt, it may be the case that they may be 
required to use it for housing in the long term. 

• Should South Buckinghamshire’s objections produce an impasse, SBC 
would still be in a position to state to the inspector that it had 
undertaken the work required by Government. Luton had encountered 
similar issues with Central Bedfordshire and not been found to be in 
breach of its responsibilities.  

• Of the challenges identified, housing had taken priority to an extent.  

• Consultation on the town centre would take place at the end of 2017, 
with the resulting planning application scheduled for April 2018. Once 
this was completed, the demolition of the existing facilities would start. 
To mitigate the impact of this, a phased approach to the building work 
would be taken whilst ‘pop ups’ would be encouraged to set up in the 
town centre. However, disruption was inevitable. 

• A lack of engagement in consultation exercises was recognised, and 
had been a historical issue. A variety of solutions had been attempted 
(e.g. visits to Parish Councils, using meetings of business 
organisations) but take up remained disappointing. Officers were 
prepared to investigate any other methods for increasing participation 
that were suitable. 

• Consultation could also be seen by residents as lacking meaning if the 
decision went against the majority view expressed by residents; 
however, this was in the nature of the process on occasion. This was 
particularly the case if objections raised did not have substantive 
grounds. However, participation did rise if it related to matters that were 
of specific local interest rather than high level strategy. 

• Landowners traditionally want as much development on their sites as 
possible. However, SBC had often turned down applications on the 
basis that they affected areas such as flood plains or country parks. As 
a result, there was a significant amount of more attractive new housing 
areas in the Plan, although some of these were of a fairly high density. 

• It was acknowledged that the timescales around Heathrow were 
slipping; the consultation was meant to be underway by the time of the 

Page 3



Neighbourhoods and Community Services Scrutiny Panel - 02.11.17 

 

meeting but was still yet to start. The principles of the Spatial Strategy 
were outlined in the report. 

• Once the Plan was in place, the degree to which planning applications 
could be justified by its provisions would be given significant weight. 
However, in the period before its formal adoption this weight would not 
be as great. 

• Infrastructure money could be obtained through Section 106 funds and 
the Community Infrastructure Levy. However, the latter had not been 
used due to the current lack of affordable housing. 

 
Resolved: 

1. That the following matters be borne in mind in the completion of the 
Local Plan: 

• Space for infrastructure and playing fields 

• The need for high quality design 

• Suitable transport facilities 

• A mixture of types of housing 

• A variety of retail options 

• Landscaping and the creation of a ‘tree rich’ environment 
2. That the Local Plan return as an agenda item in the next Municipal 

Year. 
 
(At this point, the meeting adjouned at 7.45pm and reconvened at 7.58pm) 
 

31. Resident Involvement  
 
The Panel raised the following points in discussion: 
 

• Residents on the Residents’ Board and the 2 related panels had 
remained relatively stable over the last 18 months. The level of 
turnover from the previous period had been dramatically reduced. 

• Face to face meetings to discuss housing options had seen an 
increased level of engagement and participation. 

• The Residents’ Conference on 28th October had been well attended, 
saw a high level of dialogue and positive outcomes. 

• The findings of the mystery shopping exercise had been shared with 
arvato. As a result, some new policies had been introduced (e.g. 
named officers given as contact to service users).  

• Quarterly figures were being compiled and used to measure KPIs, 
whilst an annual audit and review would also be undertaken. This 
would be available for the Panel to review in the autumn of 2018. 

 
Resolved: 

1. That an agenda item on the Annual Report on residents’ experiences 
be taken in November 2018. 

2. That the Panel be invited to a meeting of the Residents’ Board. 
 
 
 

Page 4



Neighbourhoods and Community Services Scrutiny Panel - 02.11.17 

 

32. The Voids Process And Performance Relating To Council Homes  
 
The Panel raised the following points in discussion: 
 

• The process of demobilisation by the previous service providers had 
proved challenging. As a result, Osborne Property Services Limited 
(OPSL) had taken on more voids than was planned during the 
transition phase. 

• The penalty structure for the previous contract had proved ineffective. 
One major new innovation in the new contract (as well as raising the 
levels of the penalties) would be that they would be levied 
automatically. As a result, this would avoid creating some of the 
antagonistic conversations raised by previous attempts to address the 
issue when it occurred. 

• Staff would be transferred over in line with TUPE as appropriate by 1st 
December 2017. 

• The previous contract had also allowed for subcontracting; the provider 
was therefore getting paid for a service they were not providing directly. 

• OPSL would recognise trade unions for the purposes of individual 
rights but not collective bargaining. 

• Prior to OPSL taking over the service, SBC had done a thorough 
analysis of the previous arrangement and its outcomes. This was with 
a view to the new contract giving SBC greater control over the contract. 
It was accepted that Interserve’s performance level had been 
unacceptable. Whilst standards had been maintained in the early 
stages, they had slipped and been allowed to remain poor. 

• SBC and OPSL would be co-located in the new office space; this would 
allow for on-going conversations rather than the previous, more distant 
relationship. 

• The new governance arrangements would also provide support for a 
bottom-up system of information sharing; KPIs would also be a central 
element in monitoring performance. 

 
Resolved: 

1. That the Panel take an agenda item for information regarding OPSL’s 
performance in the summer of 2018. 

2. That the Panel take an agenda item on OPSL in the autumn of 2018. 
3. That the Panel be invited to the opening ceremony of OPSL’s tenure at 

Hawker House. 
 

33. 5 Year Plan: Outcome 4 (Robust Regulation Of Private Rented Sector 
(PRS))  
 
The Panel raised the following points in discussion: 
 

• The sector was particularly important in the Slough context; SBC was 
prioritising action against rogue landlords. Using the current 
Government’s definition, 250 cases of rogue landlords had been 
identified. However, some of these appeared to relate to issues of 
competence rather than malicious intent. 

Page 5



Neighbourhoods and Community Services Scrutiny Panel - 02.11.17 

 

• Members also expressed concerns regarding matters that were not 
‘rogue’ as defined by regulations, but penalised tenants (e.g. deposits 
being charged at high rates). SBC would use its licensing regime to 
bolster self-regulation and ensure that landlords were clear on their role 
and responsibilities. Enforcement was not the most effective route, 
given the time and cost involved. However, SBC’s powers in areas 
such as requesting reasonable deposit levels were limited in the 
current regulatory climate. 

• The team overseeing the sector had increased from 4 posts to 7, 
although some of these were not yet filled. 

• SBC would investigate the possibility of local licensing. However, at 
present local authorities could only impose criteria on very specific 
grounds (e.g. anti social behaviour). These also needed to be backed 
by evidence and presented to central Government. 

• The expansion of the team had allowed for increased issuing of 
warrants regarding the exploitation of tenants. It had also assisted in 
the development of relationships with agencies. 

• Licensing on houses in multiple occupation had been trialled in 
Chalvey. This had provided benefits, and SBC had also compiled data 
for each ward. A paper to Cabinet on the matter was due to be 
presented to Cabinet in January 2018. 

• Owners were responsible for subletting or the over occupation of 
properties. SBC had the power to take action in these cases under the 
Housing Act. 

• The Building Research Establishment report identified 73 houses in 
multiple occupation which were covered by mandatory licensing. 
However, it was estimated that there were 2,500 such houses in 
Slough not subject to this regime. Many of these were hidden; it could 
also be hard to prove as landlords may evict them unlawfully should 
they anticipate a visit. 

 
Resolved: 

1. That the Panel support the expansion of the Chalvey pilot across 
Slough. 

2. That the Panel ask officers to investigate the relative merits of targeting 
resources on rogue landlords rather than universal registration. 

 
34. Fire Safety - Verbal Update  

 
This update was provided as the last information provided on the matter was 
in the aftermath of the Grenfell disaster. Since then, SBC had undertaken 
action on the issue.  
 
Slough had 4 high rise and 40 low rise flats, with the high rise buildings 
prioritised. Broom and Poplar were having urgent work undertaken on them at 
the time of this meeting. However, it should be emphasised that this was 
precautionary; their cladding was not the same as Grenfell. The focus of 
efforts was on investigating the extent to which compartmentation could be 
used as means of preventing the spread of fire, the potential costs involved 
and the viability of such work. Meanwhile, the design and cladding materials 

Page 6



Neighbourhoods and Community Services Scrutiny Panel - 02.11.17 

 

used in low rise flats were completely different to those at Grenfell, but SBC 
was working with Saviles and the Fire Service. This was to ensure that the 
highest standards of fire safety were maintained and also to see if any work 
was required by changes in legislation. Sprinkler systems for the 2 high rise 
blocks currently under occupation was also a priority. 
 
The Panel raised the following points in discussion: 
 

• Sprinklers were a design standard on high rise blocks. However, the 
same policy was not clear for schools. SBC pursued a collaborative 
approach in these buildings. 

• SBC paid for these works; if they had been sold, then responsibility 
transferred to the leaseholder. Fire safety and evacuation plans were 
also assessed in conjunction with the Fire Service. 

• Members wished an official record to be made of their concerns over 
the commercial implications of the acquisition of Nova House. They 
also stated their displeasure with the lack of clarity provided to support 
the proposal and the lack of a business case. They also raised 
concerns over the lack of an evacuation plan for other SBC properties. 

 
Resolved: That the update be noted. 
 

35. Forward Work Programme  
 
Resolved: That the work programme be noted. 
 

36. Attendance Record  
 
Resolved: That the attendance record be noted. 
 

37. Date of Next Meeting - 16th January 2018 (Hawker House)  
 
 

Chair 
 
 
(Note: The Meeting opened at 6.34 pm and closed at 9.08 pm) 
 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



N
E

IG
H

B
O

U
R

H
O

O
D

S
 A

N
D

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 S

C
R

U
T

IN
Y

 P
A

N
E

L
 

 7
th

 S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
7
 

 M
in

u
te

: 
A

c
ti

o
n

: 
F

o
r:

 
R

e
p

o
rt

 B
a
c
k
 T

o
: 

D
a
te

: 
22

 
A

 lo
w

 e
m

is
si

on
 s

tra
te

gy
 w

as
 b

ei
ng

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 a

nd
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

sh
ar

ed
 w

ith
 

C
ou

nc
ill

or
s 

la
te

r i
n 

20
17

. 
  

A
ir 

Q
ua

lit
y 

M
an

ag
er

 
N

C
S

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

 
A

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 

22
 

R
e
s
o

lv
e
d

: 
Th

at
 th

e 
P

an
el

 re
co

m
m

en
d 

th
at

 a
ll 

S
B

C
 d

ec
is

io
ns

 in
 fu

tu
re

 
co

ns
id

er
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 im
pa

ct
 a

nd
 in

co
rp

or
at

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
lo

w
 e

m
is

si
on

 s
tra

te
gy

. 
 

A
ir 

Q
ua

lit
y 

M
an

ag
er

 
N

C
S

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

 
A

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 

 2
n

d
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
7
 

 M
in

u
te

: 
A

c
ti

o
n

: 
F

o
r:

 
R

e
p

o
rt

 B
a
c
k
 T

o
: 

D
a
te

: 
29

 
P

ay
m

en
ts

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
In

ce
nt

iv
es

 S
ch

em
e 

to
ta

lle
d 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
£2

50
,0

00
. 

Th
es

e 
co

ul
d 

al
so

 b
e 

us
ed

 to
 a

ug
m

en
t t

he
 H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

P
re

ve
nt

io
n 

S
tra

te
gy

; a
s 

a 
re

su
lt,

 th
e 

is
su

e 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

di
sc

us
se

d 
fu

rth
er

 u
nd

er
 a

n 
ag

en
da

 
ite

m
 o

n 
th

e 
m

at
te

r s
ch

ed
ul

ed
 fo

r 1
8th

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

8.
 

 

H
ou

si
ng

 
N

C
S

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

 
16

th
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
8 

30
 

A
 l

ac
k 

of
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t 
in

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

ex
er

ci
se

s 
w

as
 r

ec
og

ni
se

d,
 a

nd
 h

ad
 

be
en

 a
 h

is
to

ric
al

 i
ss

ue
…

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 w
er

e 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 t

o 
in

ve
st

ig
at

e 
an

y 
ot

he
r 

m
et

ho
ds

 fo
r i

nc
re

as
in

g 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n 
th

at
 w

er
e 

su
ita

bl
e.

 
 

P
la

nn
in

g 
N

C
S

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

 
A

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 

31
 

R
e
s
o

lv
e
d

: 
  
  
Th

at
 th

e 
P

an
el

 b
e 

in
vi

te
d 

to
 a

 m
ee

tin
g 

of
 th

e 
R

es
id

en
ts

’ B
oa

rd
. 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

P
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
Te

am
 

N
C

S
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

P
an

el
 

A
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

32
 

R
e
s
o

lv
e
d

: 
  
  
Th

at
 th

e 
P

an
el

 b
e 

in
vi

te
d 

to
 th

e 
op

en
in

g 
ce

re
m

on
y 

of
 O

P
S

L’
s 

te
nu

re
 a

t H
aw

ke
r H

ou
se

. 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

N
C

S
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

P
an

el
 

18
th
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
8 

AGENDA ITEM 3

Page 9



 

3
3
 

R
e
s
o

lv
e
d

: 
1.

 
Th

at
 t

he
 P

an
el

 s
up

po
rt 

th
e 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
of

 t
he

 C
ha

lv
ey

 p
ilo

t 
ac

ro
ss

 
S

lo
ug

h.
 

 

H
ou

si
ng

 
N

C
S

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

 
A

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 

33
 

R
e
s
o

lv
e
d

: 

2.
 

Th
at

 
th

e 
P

an
el

 
as

k 
of

fic
er

s 
to

 
in

ve
st

ig
at

e 
th

e 
re

la
tiv

e 
m

er
its

 
of

 
ta

rg
et

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
on

 
ro

gu
e 

la
nd

lo
rd

s 
ra

th
er

 
th

an
 

un
iv

er
sa

l 
re

gi
st

ra
tio

n.
 

 

H
ou

si
ng

 
N

C
S

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

 
A

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 

 

Page 10



  

 
SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
REPORT TO:   Neighbourhood & Community Services Scrutiny Panel  
 
DATE:    16th January 2018 
     
CONTACT OFFICER:    Kamal Lallian, Neighbourhood Contracts & Business 

Services Manager 
 (For all Enquiries)   (01753) 875695 
     
WARD(S):   All 
 

PART I 
FOR COMMENT & CONSIDERATION 

 
NEIGHBOURHOOD AND HOUSING SCRUTINY OVERVIEW INDICATORS 

 
1. Purpose of Report 
 

The purpose of this report is to provide Members a progress update on the 
Scrutiny Overview Indicators (SOI) with a full dashboard of the SOIs and an 
exception report.  

 
2. Recommendation(s)/Proposed Action 
 

That the Panel note the Scrutiny Overview Indicators Dashboard and The Panel is 
endorse the ongoing revision of the SOIs presented to best represent services 
delivered. 
 

3. The Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy, the JSNA and the Five Year Plan 
 
The Scrutiny Overview Indicators (SOIs) track and follow activities and 
performance in Strategic Housing Services and Neighbourhood Services key 
areas of operation and therefore many contribute towards the Slough Joint 
Wellbeing Strategy and the Council’s Five Year Plan. 

 
3a.    Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy Priorities  

Strategic Housing Services – Colin Moone  
 

•   Homelessness and Temporary accommodation – ensuring that 
homelessness is prevented and those in temporary accommodation are 
there for as short a time as possible 

 

•    Development and Housing Supply – to ensure there is a sufficient housing 
supply of affordable housing to meet the demands for good quality 
housing  

 

•    Fraud – demonstrating where housing is fraudulently obtained or used is 
brought back into use for those in need of good quality affordable housing. 

 

•   Voids – measuring the average time to re-let properties to ensure key to 
key times are efficient and allow allocations to meet housing demand for 
good quality housing 

AGENDA ITEM 5

Page 11



  

 
 Neighbourhood Services – John Griffiths 
 

•    Housing Regulation – specifically addresses the need to monitor the 
number of CAT 1 risks removed from private sector housing and the 
management of HMOs ensuring those in the private sector are in safe, 
good quality housing. 

 

•    Anti-social behaviour (council stock only) – understanding that safe 
healthy housing is not just the physical structure but also the environment 
people live in. 

 

•    Repairs and Capital investment – to ensure all council housing stock has a 
valid gas safety certificate providing safe housing. 

 

•    Neighbourhood Enforcement – understanding that safe healthy housing is 
not just the physical structure but also the environment people live in 

 
 
3b. Five Year Plan Outcomes  

Strategic Housing Services – Colin Moone  
 

Our residents will have access to good quality homes.  
 

• The number of cases where positive action succeeded in preventing 
homelessness. 

 

• Actual new homes completions in the year against the target figure. 
 

• The number of properties recovered as a result of fraud investigation. 
 

• Fraud interventions in relation to right-to-buys. 
 
 Neighbourhood Services – John Griffiths 

 
Our residents will have access to good quality homes.  
 

• The number of managed - General Needs properties. 
 

• The average time to re-let void properties. 
 

• Number of private properties that have had category 1 hazards removed. 
 

• Number of private rented sector dwellings improved due to intervention of 
the Housing Regulation Team   

 
Slough will be an attractive place where people choose to live, work and visit 
 

• The number of new ASB cases reported, how many successful outcomes 
achieved and average days to resolve a case. 

 

• The number and type of neighbourhood enforcement and the number of 
formal enforcement notices served by notice type 

Page 12



  

 
 
4.  Other Implications 

 
(a) Financial 
 
There are no financial implications of proposed action 
 
(b) Risk Management 
 
Recommendatio
n from section 2 
above 

Risks/Threats/ 
Opportunities 

Current Controls Using the Risk 
Management 
Matrix Score the 
risk 

Future Controls 

The 
Committee 
note the 
Scrutiny 
Overview 
Indicators 
Dashboard 

Opportunity to 
understand  
services 
supply & 
demand  
 

Indicators 
monitored on a 
quarterly basis 

Low N/A 

 
(c) Human Rights Act and Other Legal Implications  
 
There are no human rights or other implications  

 
(d) Equalities Impact Assessment   
 
The EIA is not required as the report requires the SOI return to be noted and 
approval of subsequent changes required.  No impact on equality has been 
identified. 

 
5. Supporting Information 
 

Background 
 
5.1 On 17th January 2017 Neighbourhood and Community Scrutiny approved the 

Scrutiny Overview Indicators and requested the service return on 26th June 2017 
with a full dashboard of SOIs and an exception report. On the 26th June the 
second report was presented to the 2017 Neighbourhood and Community Scrutiny 
Panel, from that meeting three actions were requested, the panel are asked to 
review the actions taken: 

 
5.2  It was noted that Stage 2 complaints had risen and Members would be informed 

as to the reasons for this.  A full response is provided at appendix B. 
 
5.3 The Panel also recommended that a Scrutiny Indicator on the percentage of      

garages held by SBC currently being let be added to the list of indicators. This is 
indicator SOI 40 on Scrutiny Overview Indicator (SOI) dashboard with additional 
information provided at appendix A of this report. 

 
5.4 Finally, the Panel requested that a report by exception on voids be added to the 

agenda for 2nd November 2017.  A Void report was presented to Neighbourhood 
and Community Scrutiny Panel on this date. 

Page 13



  

 
5.6 Recommendations were made at June’s Neighbourhood and Community Scrutiny 

Panel meeting in relation to Indicators SOI 7, SOI 8, SOI 38, SOI 45 & SOI 46. All 
recommendations were shown in the minutes as resolved and this is now reflected 
in the SOI dashboard (appendix A) with these indicators removed. 

 
5.7 The SOIs whilst developed before the launch of the Housing Strategy 2016-2021 

can be considered relevant in supporting four of the five overarching themes: 
 

• Theme 1 – New Housing Supply 

• Theme 2 – Private Sector Housing 

• Theme 3 – Council Homes 

• Theme 4 – Homelessness and Housing Need 

Exception report 
 
5.8 In total there are now 41 Scrutiny Overview Indicators; 37 are reported on a 

quarterly basis and 4 report annually.  
 
5.9 18 Scrutiny Overview Indicators report operational areas within Strategic Housing 

Services, Service Lead Colin Moone, and 23 Scrutiny Overview Indicators report 
operational areas within Neighbourhood Services headed by John Griffiths. 

 
5.10 The second part of this report is split into sections A and B in order to present the 

exceptions in order of Service Department. 
 
Strategic Housing Services – Colin Moone  
 
5.11 SOI 7 - Total Net cost of all temporary accommodation 

Due to wide fluctuation in the Net cost quarter on quarter it has not been possible 
to set RAG rating control limits for this indicator yet. 

 
5.12 SOI 20 - % of debt that is former tenant arrears. 

SOI 21 - % of former tenant arrears written off. 

SOI 20 and 21 whilst reported, no RAG rating applies as there is no performance 
measure applied in the Arvato contract for the performance of former tenant debt.   

 
Neighbourhood Services – John Griffiths  
 
5.13 At the end of Quarter one the indicator SOI 37 “The percentage of dwellings 

with a valid gas safety certificate (RAMIS reporting via Property Services)” 
did not achieve its target figure of 100%. There is no tolerance allowance on this 
target figure so a Red RAG rating was awarded, and in line with the agreed RAG 
rating process, a RAG rating action sheet was issued to the data owner of the 
indicator. 

 
5.14 At the end of quarter two the indicator’s performance was checked along with the 

effectiveness of the responsive action stated on the action sheet. The indicator 
achieved its 100% target for the end of quarter two and a Green Rag rating 
awarded. Sampling took place on both the data supplied to support the 100% 

Page 14



  

figure and random sampling on tenanted properties that had the gas supplied 
disconnected  This is all evidenced on the RAG rating action sheet (Appendix C). 

 
5.15 SOI 17 Average re-let time in days (standard re-lets) 

SOI 18 Number of major works voids 
Outturn figures for both these indicators were included in the SOI dashboard for 
the first time at the end of quarter two, the RAG rating control limits for these 
indicators have not been set as yet. It is anticipated this will be done in towards the 
end of 17/18 when there is sufficient trend information available. 

 
5.18 SOI 19 Total cost of major works voids 

As stated in the June report, the target to start reporting on this indicator is first 
quarter 17/18 and this is still the current position.  

 
5.19 SOI 32 - Number of private rented sector dwellings improved 

SOI 32 reported for the first time in quarter one but the method of collecting and 
collating the data was very time consuming. The Service Manager is re-visiting the 
data collection methodology and accuracy and was unable to report for quarter 
two, if the indicator is not reported in quarter three a further update will be 
provided. 

 
5.20 While none of the indicators within the operational area of Neighbourhood Service 

have been given two consecutive Amber or a Red RAG rating at the end of quarter 
two it is worth noting those on a first Amber RAG rating. These are as follows:- 

 

• SOI 30 Number of HMO found that were not licenced. 

• SOI 47 Volume of new service requests received this quarter. 

• SOI 49 Number of stage 1 complaints received. 
 
6. Comments of Other Committees 
 

No other committees at Slough Borough Council have considered this report. 
 
7. Conclusion 
 

The Panel is asked to note that the Scrutiny Overview Indicators (SOIs) are 
designed to give members an overview of the services undertaken by Strategic 
Housing Services and Neighbourhood Services and engages a conversation with 
members to review and challenge information presented and services delivered.   
 
The Panel is also requested to endorse the ongoing revision of the SOIs 
presented to best represent services delivered. 
 

8. Appendices Attached 
 

‘A’ - Scrutiny Overview Indicator Dashboard  
‘B’  - Response to increase in stage 2 complaints 
‘C’ - RAG rating action sheet 1 (SOI 37) 

 
9. Background Papers 
 

None 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

Page 17



 

Page 18



 

   

Page 19



 

Page 20



 

  

Page 21



 

  

Page 22



 

 

Page 23



 

   

Page 24



 

     

Page 25



 

  

Page 26



 

  

Page 27



 

Page 28



 

Neighbourhood and Community Services Scrutiny Panel  

Response to increase in stage 2 complaints 

 

At their meeting on 26 June 2017 the Neighbourhood and Housing Scrutiny Panel asked to be 

informed as to the reason why the number of complaints escalating to stage 2 of the complaints 

process had risen from 1 in quarter 1 to 7 in quarter 3. 

2 Of these complaints related to the Strategic Housing Service, however the remaining 5 were in 

relation to Neighbourhood Services.  The reasons for the escalation of these complaints was: 

1. The complaint related to a complex neighbour dispute around the community hall in Harrow 

Road, Langley.  The issue involved the community hall managers and the neighbours either 

side of the hall.  The complainant was the perpetrator of anti-social behaviour themselves 

and the complaint was escalated due to their failure to allow time for officers to resolve the 

dispute. 

 

2. The complaint related to property boundary lines and it was escalated due to the length of 

time taken to clarify this. 

 

3. The complainant is well known to the service and the complaint related to a number of 

issues relating to the block they live in.  The Information & Participation Manager and the 

Neighbourhood Manager were in regular communication (by telephone) with the 

complainant throughout, however they remained unhappy with the length of time it took to 

carry out the requested work, eg remove a bin store. 

 

4. The complainant was persistent, bordering vexatious and the details of the complaint 

frequently changed.  The complainant was the son of the tenant and there were issues 

gaining access to the property to inspect it.  The complaint was eventually escalated at the 

complainant’s request.  The complainant was offered the opportunity to present their 

complaint to the Resident Complaints Panel (before approaching the Ombudsman) but the 

failed to agree a date/time on which to meet with them.  They did not go on to approach the 

Ombudsman. 

 

5. The complaint related to the removal of a dangerous dog which was later put down.  The 

complaint was escalated at the complainant’s request as they were not happy with the 

response at stage 1 which explained why the dog was removed and later put down. 

 

Having reviewed the escalated complaints, 3 of the 5 complainants are well known to the service 

and were in regular contact with the Complaints Co-Ordinator, Information & Participation 

Manager and the Neighbourhood Teams throughout the investigation and management of their 

complaint.  The complaints were escalated largely due to the complainant refusing to accept the 

service’s response at stage 1 as it was not the response they sought. 

Appendix B 

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



RAG Rating Action Sheet (1) 

1. To be completed by the SOI monitoring officer 

SOI No. PERFORMANCE INDICATOR TITLE: 
RAG RATING 
AWARDED 

SOI 37 The percentage of dwellings with a valid gas safety 
certificate (RAMIS reporting via Property Services) Red 

Team/Operational area Data owner Data supplier 

Neighbourhood Services Alan Cope Alan Cope 
Target, or SPC limit reached or 
breached 

Actual target performance or outturn 
reached 

100% 99.95% 
Reporting quarter Quarter1 17/18 RAG rating type 1, 2 or 3 3 

Date Raised: 18/07/17 RAG sheet No 01 

2. To be completed by respondent for the service area affected 

REASON GIVEN FOR RAG RATING: 
The reporting data is provided by RAMIS on the last working day of the reporting period 
which, for Q1, identified 3 properties without a valid LGSR:  16, Grampian Way, 27 Dawes 
Moor Close & 82 Reddington Drive.  As with the weekly reporting process these 3 properties 
were immediately investigated and concluded that valid certificates were issued for two of 
the properties and the third property was in fact sold.  This highlighted an issue with the 
current process of updating RAMIS three times each week and the potential for delay in 
updating records.  As the RAMIS system develops across all statutory compliance services 
minor administrative anomalies are being identified and corrected through regular meetings 
with Neighbourhoods (Client), Property Services (administration of the RAMIS system) and 
Interserve (service delivery).   
(PLEASE SELECT BEST  MATCH OF ROUTE CAUSE) 
PROCESS INADEQUACY TRAINING COMMUNICATION RESOURCES *OTHER 

X     
*If stated other please suggest category header for route cause 

 
RESPONSIVE ACTION TO BE TAKEN: 
Process in place to ensure a full update of data immediately prior to running the 
Quarterly Report to ensure that the reported performance does not contain any 
administrative anomalies. 

Respondent Date Action target date 

Alan Cope 29/8/17 29/8/17 

3. To be completed by the SOI monitoring officer 

RESULT & EFFECTIVE OF ACTION:  
The target of 100% was achieved at the end of quarter two for this indicator and a Green 
RAG rating awarded. A copy of the end of quarter RAMIS report that shows properties 
without a current gas certificate was supplied by email, this verified that all properties that 
appeared on it were excluded from the gas certificate count under the definition used for this 
indicator. A further random check was carried out on tenanted disked properties (107 
Greystoke Road cert dated 6/4/17, 51 Burgett  Road cert dated 12/7/17 & 49 Goodwin Road 
cert dated 29/6/17) Certificates held on RAMIS for all sampled properties.  

ACTION SHEET CLOSED    (DELETE AS APPLICABLE) 

Review date: 21/11/17 Reviewing officer: Kevin Smith 

 

Appendix C 

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 7 
 

 

 
SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
REPORT TO:   Neighbourhood & Communities Scrutiny Panel 
 
DATE:    16th January 2018 
     
CONTACT OFFICER:    John Griffiths, Service Lead Neighbourhoods 
(For all Enquiries)   (01753) 875436 
     
WARD(S):   All 
 

PART I 
FOR COMMENT & CONSIDERATION 

 
FIVE YEAR PLAN – PRIORITY 5 MAKE BEST USE OF EXISTING PUBLIC SECTOR 
HOUSING STOCK 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
To update the Panel on action undertaken in respect of Outcome 4: Priority 5 –  
Our residents will have access to good quality homes: Make best use of existing 
public sector housing stock. 

 
2. Recommendation(s)/Proposed Action 

 
• The Panel is requested to note this report  

 
3.  The Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy, the JSNA and the Five Year Plan 
 
3a.     Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy Priorities  

 
In making the best use of its existing housing stock, the council will ensure that 
investment decisions will be made at the right time and for the right reasons. In 
doing so this deliver against the priority for Housing.  

 
3b.  Five Year Plan Outcomes  
 
           Making the best use of its existing housing stock is one of the priorities for: 
 

• Our residents will have access to good quality homes. 
 
4.   Other Implications 

 
(a) Financial  

 
The recent stock condition survey has indicated the need to invest £420m over 
the next 30 years in maintaining the existing HRA housing stock. Every year, the 
HRA’s scope to fund the day to day and major repairs and maintenance of its 
stock is updated for changes to the rental income, stock changes, inflation, 
service demands, policy changes and the impact of Government changes. The 
30 year HRA Financial Business Plan is being updated but there are currently no 

AGENDA ITEM 6

Page 33



Page 2 of 7 
 

indications that the HRA cannot continue to meet its day to day and major 
maintenance obligations and the funding of the £420m required to achieve that 
over the next 30 years.  

 
(b) Risk Management  

 
Recommendation Risk/Threat/Opportunity Mitigation(s) 

 
The Panel is requested 
to note this report 

 
There are none 

 
There are none 

 
 

(c) Human Rights Act and Other Legal Implications  
 

There are no legal or Human Rights Act implications for this report 
 

(d) Equalities Impact Assessment   
 
There is no need for an equalities impact assessment in relation to this report. 

 
5.  Supporting Information 
 

Summary 
 

5.1 In conjunction with the re-procurement of the Repairs, Maintenance & Investment 
(‘RMI’) Contract, the Service Lead – Neighbourhoods commissioned a Stock 
Condition Survey. This was undertaken by specialist surveyors Michael Dyson 
Associates and was completed in February 2017. 
 

5.2 Subsequently and as part of the Housing Options Appraisal, an Investment Plan 
and Asset Performance Evaluation of the housing stock has also been 
undertaken.  
 

5.3 The results of the survey have been analysed by Savills, who have been 
engaged by the Council to develop the first two years of the Capital Investment 
Programme of the RMI contract. 
 

5.4 The information now available to the Council about its housing stock will enable 
evidence based decision making in respect of strategic options for: 
 

• Re-modelling of individual assets / sites; 

• The extent of capital investment to make, when and where; 

• Undertaking option and / or development appraisals; 

• Disposals; and, 

• Building new homes for both temporary accommodation and permanent 
housing. 

 
5.5 This report sets out the steps taken since the Stock Condition Survey was 
 completed leading to preparation of the Council’s Asset Management Strategy. 

 
   The Stock Condition Survey  

 

Page 34



Page 3 of 7 
 

5.6 The survey results have set out the level of investment required to maintain the 
housing stock to a decent standard over the next 30 years. Circa 80% of the 
stock had an internal survey completed and all properties were surveyed 
externally that provides a reliable data set. 
   

5.7 Savills were subsequently asked to review the stock condition survey results and 
 to assist in converting them into detailed programmes of refurbishment work for 
 the first 2 to 3 years of the RMI Contact; then to carry out some investment 
 planning and asset  performance evaluation that together will inform a new asset 
 management strategy.  
 
5.8 As reported previously, the survey showed the Council will need to invest circa 

£420m into maintaining the stock over the next 30 years, equivalent to circa £68k 
per unit. Savills’ view is that is typical of stock in reasonably good condition.  
 

5.9 In the context of the new 10 year RMI Contract, the £420m investment over 30 
years divided equally into 3, 10 year tranches comes in at £140m. The current 
RMI budget is £100m over the first 7 years that means the investment required is 
affordable but it is clear there is little room for manoeuvre.  
 

5.10 That means the capital programme will need to be carefully managed to contain 
spend within available budgets. Nothing new for the Council in that regard but it 
is evident the RMI budget is tight and will be unable to fund anything other than 
maintaining the stock to its current standard.  

 
The Investment Plan 

 
5.11 The underlying data from the stock condition survey was broken down into the 
 investment needed into two, five year tranches over the next ten years against  
 priorities for technical need, R&M spend, asset performance and available 
 budgets. The aims of the Investment Plan are to ensure spend is made to the 
 right stock, at the right time and it remains affordable.   
 
5.12 The investment plans have prioritised the spend required and clustered works by 
 internal and external component so logical programmes of work can be formed 
 and matched to available budgets. The works by component have been plotted 
 onto maps using Ordnance Survey tiles that illustrates the spread of work across 
 the Borough by year over the first 5 years of the RMI Programme. The mapping 
 tool also serves as a useful aid to resident consultation. 
 
5.13 The investment plans will be discussed with Osborne Property Services Ltd (the 
 RMI ‘Service Partner’) so they can prepare detailed programmes of work for the 
 first years of the Contract starting from April. The programmes will include details 
 of the quantum and scope of work that can then be validated by the Service 
 Partner during the pre-commencement stage. Once the scope is firmed up, 
 pricing can be confirmed and s.20 Notices issued to leaseholders with price 
 certainty. 
 
 Asset Performance Evaluation 
 
5.14 The next piece of work was a detailed analysis of the performance of the stock 
 to provide a tool for managers to use in prioritising investment decisions as part 
 of the investment plan and overall asset management strategy. 

Page 35



Page 4 of 7 
 

 
5.15 Asset Performance Evaluation includes:  
 

• Utilisation of a modelling tool to generate cash flows and to measure worth 
to the housing business plan; 

• Provision of an objective baseline on which to make investment decisions;  

• An approach to the measurement of the long term performance of all HRA 
assets;  

• Help to optimise planning for replacement or modernisation of assets;  

• Generating a ‘candidate list’ for option appraisal;  

• Providing a key component of business planning.  
 
5.16 The benefits of this approach are that it enables the Council to: 
  

• Strengthen its business plan and manage risks associated with required 
rent reductions;  

• Make more efficient use of capital resources available;  

• Consider long-term planning for obsolescence;  

• Understand issues of future demand and where the greatest risks and 
opportunities exist to manage this; 

• Obtain a balance between new build, remodelling & stock investment;  

• Test alternative strategies;  

• Enable balanced investment decisions and support difficult decision 
making;  

• Demonstrate active asset management to meet the Council’s value for 
money objectives; and, 

• Communicate reasons for investment decisions to members, staff and 
residents.  

  
Phase 1: Financial sustainability  

 
5.17 In order to give an objective overview of the performance of the Council’s 
 housing portfolio, the model was built using existing data drawn from the 
 housing management system, supplemented with work from the Investment Plan 
 as outlined above.  
 
5.18 Significantly, the model was built up from an individual property level. This 
 enables an analysis of Net Present Values and cashflows in any combination. 
 The model is based on a series of recognisable asset groups the Council can 
 use to analyse groups of stock with similar characteristics.   
 
5.19 The data was then incorporated into a model setting out operating cashflows at 
 individual property and asset group level and assessment of Net Present Value 
 and future projections of worth to the Council’s business plan.  
 
5.20 The model can now be used to reflect a range of different scenarios in terms of 
 investment, rent, tenure, management and void levels etc. Inputs can be flexed 
 over time as the Asset Management Strategy develops.  
 
 
 

Page 36



Page 5 of 7 
 

5.21 The model gives the Council objective financial data to identify poorly performing 
 assets that would be the target of more detailed local options appraisal. For 
 example, those properties with a low NPV may not be programmed until later to 
 allow time for an options appraisal to be carried out.  
 
 Phase 2: Non financial sustainability  
 
5.22 The next step was to incorporate a non-financial measure of sustainability – or 
 Social Return on Investment. Financial results were correlated with non-
 financial data to enable an analysis of other factors relevant to decision making, 
 linked to the Council’s own social housing objectives. 
  
5.23 Those measures were sourced from a variety of open/public reports on 
 deprivation indices, stock churn, void rates, tenancy acceptances, crime rates, 
 and the like.    
 
5.24 The Net Present Values produced through the asset model were then correlated 
 with the non-financial sustainability factors in order to ‘traffic light’ each asset 
 group. There will be different strategies for business improvement depending on 
 whether an asset group exhibits weak values, weak sustainability or both. 
  
5.25 All reports have been mapped on GIS to illustrate the distribution of results at 
 neighbourhood level, and to make sure the outputs can easily be extracted 
 from the model and loaded into the Council’s current GIS systems for future 
 reporting. 
 
 Phase 3 - Appraisal of poorly performing assets   
 
5.26 The APE analysis identified a total of 331 assets with marginal financial 
 performance, which decline in value in the short term even after assumptions are 
 adjusted to control costs in line with income. These assets require further 
 appraisal that is currently underway.   
  

5.27 A workshop with key staff has been held recently that agreed the number and 
 scope of appraisals required both in terms of the properties to be included, and 
 the range of options that might be feasible on each site.  
 
5.28 Following the workshop, Savills are preparing a programme to complete the 
 appraisals, a framework for how they will be carried out and the outputs 
 required to support decisions on these properties. 
 
 HRA  Management Strategy 
 
5.29 The Council now needs to establish a HRA Asset Management Strategy (HRA 

AMS) linked to the objectives that it wants to achieve and rooted in a sound 
understanding of its housing assets and the market in which it operates (both in 
terms of value and demand).  

 
5.30 Savills were appointed in December and have made a start on the strategy that 
 will include:  
 

• Introduction, background and strategic context  

• Asset management objectives  

Page 37



Page 6 of 7 
 

• Demand and sustainability – including residents’ priorities  

• Stock profile and condition, including standards, compliance and energy 
performance  

• Approach to active asset management – asset performance, tools for 
assessment and how understanding of this is used to support investment 
and value improvement; plus alternative strategies including disposals, 
demolition, regeneration and development and the outcomes from the 
appraisal process. 

• Approach to investment planning – including principles for how plans are 
put together and priorities agreed at neighbourhood level as well as 
business plan affordability  

• Proposals for internal controls and ongoing review and monitoring.  
 
5.31 Initial scoping meetings have been held with a small project group to understand 
 the Council’s strategic priorities, the challenges it faces, the appetite for active 
 asset management, future objectives, the needs and aspirations of current and 
 future residents, including the needs of the most vulnerable, and the current 
 approach to repairs  and investment planning. The last of those workshops will 
 complete in February that will give Savills the objectives and structure for the 
 strategy.  
 
5.32 The aim is to develop the strategy in a collaborative way ensuring it is not an off 
 the shelf document, but a true reflection of Slough’s ambitions for the future, and 
 a robust framework to support delivery. The results of the options appraisals will 
 be brought to those meetings so an overarching strategy can be developed for 
 the whole stock.  
 
5.33 An outline strategy document will be in place by the end of February with a fully 

worked up HRA AMS using the results of the option appraisals ready over the 
next 6 to 9 months.    

 
5.34 The document will be a strategic one and Savills do not envisage any statutory 
 consultation requirements at this stage. However, the action plan may well 
 include projects for which statutory consultation and or formal consents might be 
 required that may require the support of the Council’s legal team where this 
 might be necessary. 
 
 Additional Investment 
 
5.35 The analysis, options appraisals and the HRA Asset Management Strategy will 

provide the Council with a raft of reliable information and modelling on which to 
make  decisions on where and when to invest.  

 
5.36 Whilst the HRA AMS focusses on investing wisely to maintain the stock to a 

decent standard over the next 30 years, the Council has aspirations to build more 
homes and re-model the existing stock to increase capacity. Funding for that 
activity will come  from a variety of alternative sources outside the HRA and 
RMI budgets including use of retained 141 Right to Buy receipts, possible Public 
Works loans or other forms of institutional investment.  

 
5.37 Proposals currently in development are to provide modular housing for 
 Temporary Accommodation on existing dis-used garage sites. Subject to 

Page 38



Page 7 of 7 
 

 approval and planning, the first pilot schemes could get underway from May. The 
 works  include opportunities for local investment and employment through 
 establishing a factory in Slough to construct the timber frames and roof 
 trusses off site. Site preparation and construction is likely to be carried out by the 
 RMI Service Partner 
 
5.38 Once the proposals, costings and funding streams have been established and 
 agreed in principle by Officers, Cabinet approval will be sought to proceed and 
 this Committee briefed on progress.  
 
5.39 In addition, there is expected to be capacity to build additional stories of housing 
 onto existing low rise blocks. Known as ‘top-hatting’, the practice is becoming 
 increasingly popular with social landlords but does require careful consideration, 
 not only in respect of structural surveys to assess the technical requirements, but 
 in resident consultation and the impact any additional housing may have on the 
 existing infrastructure and community.  
 
5.40 These are all considerations the Service Lead for Neighbourhoods is looking to 
 develop over the short to medium term and will be discussed further with this 
 Committee.   
 
6. Comments of Other Committees 
 

This report has not been considered by other committees at Slough Borough 
Council. 

 
7. Conclusion 
 

This report provides Panel with an update on actions in relation to Outcome 4: 
Priority 5 of the 5 Year Pan. From the information provided through the Stock 
Condition Survey, Asset Performance Evaluation, and the development of the 
HRA  Asset Management Strategy the council will be able to make the best use 
of existing public sector housing stock. This will result in improved void 
turnaround times and increased under occupation moves. 
 

8.  Background Papers  
 

None  

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

 
SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
REPORT TO:   Neighbourhoods and Community Services Scrutiny Panel 
 
DATE:    16th January 2018 
     
CONTACT OFFICER:    Dean Trussler – Business Continuity and Response Manager 
(For all Enquiries)   (01753) 875 131 
     
WARD(S):   All 
 

PART I 
FOR COMMENT & CONSIDERATION 

 
EMERGENCY PLAN 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
To update the Neighbourhoods and Community Services (NCS) Scrutiny Panel 
on Slough Borough Council’s (SBC) contingency planning for major incidents. 

 
2. Recommendation(s)/Proposed Action 

 
The NCS Scrutiny Panel is requested to note the Emergency Plan and comment 
on its provisions.   

 
3.  The Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy, the JSNA and the Five Year Plan 
 
3a.     Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy Priorities 

 
By ensuring SBC can support its community during major incidents, the 
Emergency Plan supports all aspects of the Joint Wellbeing Strategy. 

 
3b.  Five Year Plan Outcomes 
 

By ensuring SBC can support its community during major incidents, the 
Emergency Plan supports all aspects of the Five Year Plan. 

 
4.   Other Implications 

 
(a) Financial  

 
There are no implications to the material contained in this report. 

 
(b) Risk Management  

 
 All potential risks involved in the compilation of the Emergency Plan are 
subjected to risk management as the document is created. 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 7

Page 41



  

(c) Human Rights Act and Other Legal Implications   
 
All Category 1 Responders (including local authorities) are required to compile an 
Emergency Plan under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004.  
 
(d) Equalities Impact Assessment   

 
No Equalities Impact Assessment is required in the compilation of the Emergency 
Plan. 

 
5.  Supporting Information 
 
5.1 The Emergency Plan is outlined in the following paragraphs. These will provide 

the Panel with an overview of the contingency plans SBC has made for major 
incidents. However, given the personal information included in the Emergency 
Plan, it is not possible to provide a full copy of it in the agenda papers which are 
to be made public for this meeting. 
 

5.2 The call out system provides a diagram of how the call out works. It also offers 
staff with advice as to who to call and when. The system also provides  examples 
of how to identify different incidents. 
 

5.3 The section outlining action by officers gives clear instructions of what initial 
actions officers should take. It then indicates how they should use the individual 
role action cards (which are included in the annexes of the Plan).   
 

5.4 The chapter on command and control specifies the different levels of command 
during an incident. It also contains information as to how SBC works within a 
multi agency environment using the five Joint Emergency Services 
Interoperability Principles. 
 

5.5 The next section provides references to a series of aide-memoires. These are 
contained in the annexes, and are designed to help staff to deal with 7 of the 
most likely incidents that SBC may face; they also offer guidance on the 
limitations SBC has, and offers clear reminders that staff will need to be flexible. 
 

5.6 The information regarding Mobile Incident Support (Berkshire Unitaries 
Resilience Team Transport) provides readers with instructions of how to call out 
the joint Berkshire support vehicle. It also offers clear advice as to the 
functionality of the vehicle. 
 

5.7 Emergency Purchase Arrangements are outlined. The advice gives guidance on 
how purchases are made during an incident, and also gives information on how 
to make purchases for local supermarkets. 
 

5.8 A section on standing down outlines the requirement for staff to be formally stood 
down at the end of an incident. Once this has been completed, formal debrief 
sessions should be held to identify ways to improve the response for the future.  
There is also sign posting for welfare support for staff should they require it. 
 

5.9 The Emergency Plan is then completed by a series of annexes. These are as 
follows: 

• Annexe A: Action cards and roles & responsibilities for individual set 
roles in an incident. 

Page 42



  

• Annexe B:  Aide-Memoires for the 7 most common incidents. 

• Annexe C: A series of individual forms that could be useful during an 
incident.   

• Annexe D: Contact lists for SBC and for our multi agency partners.     
 

5.10 This plan is a living document and will change and evolve over time. The next 
formal review is scheduled for September 2019. 

 
6. Comments of Other Committees 
 

No other SBC Committees have considered this report.  
 
7. Conclusion 
 

The Emergency Plan supports SBC’s planning for major incidents and will ensure 
that the authority is able to function in adverse situations. 
 

8. Appendices Attached  
 

None. 
 
 

9.  Background Papers 
 

None. 
 
 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

 
SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
REPORT TO:   Neighbourhood & Communities Scrutiny Panel 
 
DATE:    16th January 2018 
     
CONTACT OFFICER:    John Griffiths, Service Lead Neighbourhoods 
(For all Enquiries)   (01753) 875436 
     
WARD(S):   All 
 

PART I 
FOR COMMENT & CONSIDERATION 

 
DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE SLOUGH HOUSING 
 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
To update the Panel on options in respect of Development Initiative Slough 
Housing (DISH). 

 
2. Recommendation(s)/Proposed Action 

 
2.1 The Committee is requested: 

 

• To note the content of this report and that further work regarding options 
for DISH will be undertaken by officers as part of the Housing Option 
Appraisal the Commissioner Consultative Group (CCG); 

• To resolve that a report should be taken to Cabinet to make a decision on 
the preferred option following further work being undertaken by the CCG 
as part of the Option Appraisal. 

 
3.  The Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy, the JSNA and the Five Year Plan 
 
3a.     Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy Priorities  

 
The provision and maintenance of good quality and affordable family housing can 
reduce housing need for local households and contribute to the identified 
priorities of the JSNA by increasing the availability of good quality 
accommodation.   

 
3b.  Five Year Plan Outcomes  
 

Determining the future option for the DISH, will enable the Council to continue 
delivering against the outcome – Our residents will have access to good quality 
homes. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8

Page 45



  

4.   Other Implications 
 

(a) Financial  
 

There are no financial implications of proposed action.  
 

(b) Risk Management  
 

Recommendation Risk/Threat/Opportunity Mitigation(s) 

 
To note the content of 
this report and that 
further work regarding 
options for DISH will be 
undertaken by officers 
as part of the Housing 
Option Appraisal the 
Commissioner 
Consultative Group 
(CCG) 

 
There are none 

 
There are none 

 
To resolve that a report 
should be taken to 
Cabinet to make a 
decision on the 
preferred option 
following further work 
being undertaken by 
the CCG as part of the 
Option Appraisal 
 

 
There are none 

 
There are none 

 
 

(c) Human Rights Act and Other Legal Implications  
 

The DISH contract will terminate in 2019 and options for the future will be 
required to be determined. The considerations that require further detailed 
evaluation as to the best option for the future are in summary;  
 

• to extend the DISH,  

• to seek an opportunity for a new modernised version of DISH,  

• or dissolve DISH.   
 

(d) Equalities Impact Assessment   
 

 Equality Impact Assessments are routinely carried out as part of operational 
service delivery and reviews. There are no equality related issues in relation to 
the DISH at this stage. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 46



  

5.  Supporting Information 
 
5.1 DISH is a company limited by guarantee (CLG). The Council is the sole member 

of DISH. 
 
5.2 The Council and DISH entered into a lease for the land off Long Readings Lane, 

Slough, Berkshire on 7 November 1989 for a term of 30 years consisting of 54 
properties (the Lease). On the expiry of the lease on the 6 November 2019 these 
properties will return to the ownership of Council. 

 
5.3 In advance of the expiry of the lease the Council has the opportunity to decide 

how it wishes for the tenancies to be dealt upon or before the expiry. The options 
are summarised  below and will form part of a detailed options appraisal so as to 
establish the most appropriate and beneficial option for the future  : 

 
1. Continue DISH 

 
§ Extend the lease and continue the tenancies within DISH; or 

§ Allow the lease to expire and grant a new lease to DISH. 

2. Convert DISH to a Modernised Version of DISH 

§ Convert DISH to enable the use of Right-to-Buy Receipts, and 
Institutional finance to allow options for new homes through 
remodelling estates Modular Housing or New Build. 

3. Dissolve DISH  

§ Allow the lease to expire and the Council become the formal 
landlord 

§ Dissolving the DISH and ending the opportunity it was created for 
to deliver new homes through innovation. 
 

5.4 Given the complexity, the potential and risks of loss of opportunity, officers have 
begun to seek further detailed advice in respect of each of them. It is intended 
that these will be considered in further detail, as part of the Housing Option 
Appraisal and the Commissioner Consultative Group (CCG), prior to taking a 
report for decision to Cabinet. 

 
6. Comments of Other Committees 
 

This report has not been considered by other committees at Slough Borough 
Council. 

 
7. Conclusion 
 

The report provides an update regarding the possible future options for the DISH. 
As part of the Housing Option Appraisal, the options will be considered in more 
detail, prior to a recommendation being made to Cabinet. 
 

8.  Background Papers  
 

None 

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
REPORT TO:                Neighbourhoods and Community Services Scrutiny Panel 
 
DATE:    16th January 2018 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:   Neale Cooper - Head of Finance 
 
(For all enquiries)   (01753) 875417 

       
WARD(S): All 
 
 

PART I  
FOR COMMENT AND CONSIDERATION 

 
2018/19 HOUSING RENTS AND SERVICE CHARGES     

 
1 Purpose of Report 
 

To present the changes in the Housing rents and service charges for 2018/19. 
 
2 Recommendation(s)/Proposed Action 
 

The Committee is requested to scrutinise and comment on the following aspects of 
the report which will be considered by Cabinet on the 22nd January and then by 
Council on 30th January:- 

 
(a) Council house dwelling rents for 2018/19 to decrease by 1% over the 

2017/18 rent with effect from Monday 2nd April 2018. This is in line with 
current government guidelines and legislation. 

 
(b) Garage rents, heating, utility and ancillary charges to increase by 3.0% with 

effect from Monday 2nd April 2018. This is based upon the September CPI 
figure.  

 
(c) Service charges to increase by 3.0% with effect from Monday 2nd April 2018. 

This is based upon the September CPI figure. 
  
(d) ‘Other committee’ property rents to increase by an average of 3.0% from 

Monday 2nd April 2018 in line with the September CPI figure. 
 
3. The Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy, the JSNA and the Five Year Plan 
 
3a.    Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy Priorities  

 
This report sets out the context and implications for the council over the setting of 
housing rents and service charges for the next four years and impact upon the local 
community. 
 

 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 9

Page 49



 

3b Five Year Plan Outcomes  
 

This report will primarily have implications for Outcome 4 in the delivery of future 
social and affordable homes by the council, and the maximisation of the rental 
stream and asset value to the HRA. 

 
 
4  Other Implications 

 
(a) Financial  
 
The financial implications are contained within this report. 
 
(b) Risk Management  

 
If the Council follows Government guidance and legislation in the setting of its 
dwelling rents, then the risk to the Council will be mitigated. 
 

Risk Mitigating action Opportunities 

Legal n/a   

Property   

Human Rights   

Health and Safety   

Employment Issues n/a  

Equalities Issues   

Community Support   

Communications   

Community Safety   

Financial  Ensure that the Council 
sets a balanced HRA 
annual budget and matches 
the capital programme to 
the available resources. 

 

Timetable for delivery  Approval in January of the 
new rents will enable 
tenants to receive 
notification well within the 
statutory timescales. 

Project Capacity   

Other   

 
(c) Human Rights Act and Other Legal Implications  
 
There are no Human Rights Act Implications. 
 
(d) Equalities Impact Assessment  
 
There is no identified need for the completion of an EIA. 

 
 
 

Page 50



 

5 Supporting Information 
 

Background 
 
5.1 For the 10 years prior to 2015/16, the setting of Council social rents has been guided 

by the Government policy called rent convergence, the intention of which was to 
bring parity to council social rents across the country, and reduce the ‘gap’ between 
Council social rents and Housing Association rents. 

 
5.2 Driving these annual rent charges was a Government prescribed formula which 

linked the following year’s rent changes to the previous September’s RPI and was 
weighted for regional differences e.g. salaries and house prices. 

 
5.3 However, in the summer budget on the 8th July 2015, the Chancellor announced that 

“rents paid in the social housing sector will not be frozen, but reduced by 1% a year 
for the next four years”. In previous years, the Government has always allowed 
Councils ‘discretion’ in changing their rents but produced a rent policy to guide 
Councils in the setting of their rents. Slough Borough Council has followed 
Government ‘rent policy’ and set its rents in line with that policy. 

 
5.4 The Government has now departed from the previous practice of issuing rent 

‘guidance’ to setting social rents across the country through primary legislation. 
Section 23 (1) of The Welfare Reform and Work Act 2016 states that:- 

 
In relation to each relevant year, registered providers of social housing must secure 
that the amount of rent payable in a relevant year by a tenant of their social housing 
in England is 1% less than the amount that was payable by the tenant in the 
preceding 12 months. 

 
5.5 Section 23 (6) then goes on to define the relevant applicable years as a year 

beginning on the 1 April 2016, 1 April 2017, 1 April 2018 or 1 April 2019. 
 
5.6 The Act does allow exemptions from this rent reduction to be granted by the 

Secretary of State but these are very limited and clearly specified and cover 
properties such as specialist supported housing, temporary social housing, care 
homes and nursing homes. One of those exemptions (section 25(10)) is if the SoS 
considers that the local authority would be unable to avoid serious financial difficulties 
if it were to comply with the 1% rent reductions. 

 
In effect, this means that for 2018/19, the Council will again need to set its social 
rents (HRA) 1% lower than the rents current in this year. 

 
Impact 

 
5.7 The HRA 30 Year financial Business plan has been updated to reflect the 

introduction of the 1% decrease this year and the next two years. The impact on this 
year is an estimated reduction of £0.3m over last year’s rental income of £32.8m. 

 
5.8 The estimated average weekly rent for the current year is now £102.78 and the 

Government proposals will produce an estimated loss in potential rental income of 
£0.9m and an average decrease of 2.0% in weekly rent over the next two years as 
measured against this year’s rental income; this roughly equates to the loss of 3 new 
social properties. Over a ten year period, the cumulative estimated loss of rental 

Page 51



 

income could be £38m if rents had been allowed to increase by CPI plus 1%. The 
year by year future impact is shown in the table below:- 

 
 

 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

Average weekly rent £102.78 £101.75 £100.74 

Annual loss of Rent Income £1.6m £2.6m £3.6m 

 
 

Next Four Years  
 
5.9 The rent decrease will apply this year and for the next two years. On the 4th October 

2017, the Government announced that from 2020, social housing rents would be 
limited to CPI plus 1% for the following five years. This has now been assumed in the 
HRA 30 year Financial Business Plan with just CPI for the remaining years (CPI has 
been assumed to be 1%).The new RMI contract with Osbornes commenced on the 
1st December 2017, and together with the recent stock survey and the options 
appraisal, this will also feed into the future HRA Financial Business Plan.  
 

5.10 The other changes likely to impact on the HRA and the Council’s tenants in the next 
few years are:- 

 
5.10.1 Universal Credit 

 
The full UC service is expected to be rolled out in Slough from April 2018 and will 
affect all new claims from working age customers with less than three children e.g. 
unemployed, sick, disabled, carers, lone parents, foster carers plus change of 
circumstances; certain client groups e.g. over 65s, supported housing, will be 
exempt. The financial impact on the HRA for 2018/19 is difficult to estimate but the 
budgeted rental income collection rate will be revised downwards and the bad debts 
provision increased in anticipation of the switch to monthly payments, the longer 
processing time, and the merging of HB with several other benefits into one 
payment. The HRA Financial Business Plan will be reviewed on a regular basis as 
the full impact of Universal Credit becomes clearer.   
 

5.10.2 Sale of High Value Council Houses 
 

The Housing and Planning Act 2016 introduced a “Duty to consider selling vacant 
higher value housing” and Section 76 (1) states that “A local housing authority in 
England that keeps a Housing Revenue Account must consider selling its interest in 
any higher value housing that has become vacant.” This is linked to the proposed 
introduction of ‘right to buy’ for Housing Association tenants and is intended to 
‘compensate’ Housing Associations for the loss of their stock through RTB.  
 
Since the statement of the previous Housing Minister (Gavin Barwell) in November 
2016 that a ‘decision hadn’t yet been taken on the timing and the policy would 
require “quite a notice period” before being introduced’, followed by a further 
statement that the government would not be requesting any high-value asset 
payments from Local Authorities during 2017/18, there has been no indication of 
when, or whether, this proposed policy might be introduced. 
 
 
 

Page 52



 

6 Comments of Other Committees 
 

 The Housing rents and service charges 2018/19 will also be presented to Cabinet 
on the 22nd January 2018 prior to Council making their final decision. 

 
7 Conclusion 
 

The Committee is requested to scrutinise and comment on the housing rents and 
service charges for 2018/19 prior to submission to full Council on the 30th January 
2018 for the ultimate decision.  

 
8 Background Papers 
 

‘1’ Welfare and Reform Act 2016 
 
‘2’ Housing and Planning Act 2016 

Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



  

SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
REPORT TO:  Neighbourhoods & Community Services Scrutiny Panel 
 
DATE:   18th January 2018 
     
CONTACT OFFICER:    Dave Gordon – Scrutiny Officer 
(For all Enquiries)   (01753) 875411 
     
WARDS:   All 
 

PART I 
FOR COMMENT AND CONSIDERATION 

 
NEIGHBOURHOODS & COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY PANEL  
2017/18 WORK PROGRAMME 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
For the Neighbourhoods and Community Services Scrutiny Panel (NCS 
Scrutiny Panel) to discuss its current work programme. 

 
2. Recommendations/Proposed Action 
 
  That the Panel note the current work programme for the 2017/18 municipal 

year. 
 
3. The Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy, the JSNA and the Five Year Plan 
 
3.1 The Council’s decision-making and the effective scrutiny of it underpins the 

delivery of all the Joint Slough Wellbeing Strategy priorities.  The NCS 
Scrutiny Panel, along with the Overview & Scrutiny Committee and other 
Scrutiny Panels combine to meet the local authority’s statutory requirement 
to provide public transparency and accountability, ensuring the best 
outcomes for the residents of Slough.   

 
3.2 The work of the NCS Scrutiny Panel also reflects the priorities of the Five 

Year Plan, in particular the following: 
 

• Our residents will have access to good quality homes   
 
3.3 In particular, the NCS Scrutiny Panel specifically takes responsibility for 

ensuring transparency and accountability for Council services relating to 
housing, regeneration and environment, and safer communities. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 10

Page 55



  

4. Supporting Information 
 
4.1 The current work programme is based on the discussions of the NCS 

Scrutiny Panel at previous meetings, looking at requests for consideration of 
issues from officers and issues that have been brought to the attention of 
Members outside of the Panel’s meetings. 

 
4.2 The work programme is a flexible document which will be continually open to 

review throughout the municipal year.   
 
5. Conclusion 
 

This report is intended to provide the NCS Scrutiny Panel with the 
opportunity to review its upcoming work programme and make any 
amendments it feels are required.   
 

6. Appendices Attached 
 

A - Work Programme for 2017/18 Municipal Year 
 

7. Background Papers 
 
 None. 

Page 56



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

N
E

IG
H

B
O
U
R
H
O
O
D
 A
N
D
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
S
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 P
A
N
E
L
 

W
O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 2
0
1
7
/1
8
 

 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 
1
7
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
8
 

• 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 K
P
Is
 /
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 –
 6
 m
o
n
th
ly
 u
p
d
a
te
 

• 
F
iv
e
 Y
e
a
r 
P
la
n
 –
 P
ri
o
ri
ty
 5
 M
a
k
e
 b
e
s
t 
u
s
e
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
u
b
lic
 s
e
c
to
r 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
to
c
k
 

• 
E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 p
la
n
 

• 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
In
it
ia
ti
v
e
 S
lo
u
g
h
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

• 
2
0
1
8
/1
9
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 R
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 C
h
a
rg
e
s
 

 

1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
8
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 d
a
te
 -
 C
ri
m
e
 a
n
d
 D
is
o
rd
e
r 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 P
a
n
e
l 

• 
E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
P
re
v
e
n
t 

 

4
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
8
 

• 
F
ly
 t
ip
p
in
g
 

• 
S
lo
u
g
h
 a
s
 a
n
 ‘
e
x
e
m
p
la
r 
g
re
e
n
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
 

• 
H
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

  T
o
 b
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
d
: 

 

• 
S
a
fe
r 
S
lo
u
g
h
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
n
d
 s
e
x
u
a
l 
o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 –
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
8
 

• 
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
fi
rs
t 
y
e
a
r 
o
f 
R
e
p
a
ir
s
, 
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
–
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
s
ta
rt
s
 1

s
t  D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
7
 

• 
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
fi
rs
t 
y
e
a
r 
o
f 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 A
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 –
 2
0
1
9
 

• 
L
o
c
a
l 
P
la
n
 –
 2
0
1
8
 –
 1
9
 (
fi
x
 d
a
te
 o
n
c
e
 c
le
a
re
r 
–
 a
u
tu
m
n
 2
0
1
8
?
) 

• 
R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
’ 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
s
 –
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
8
 

Page 57



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 

• 
O
s
b
o
rn
e
’s
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 (
fo
r 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
) 
–
 K
P
Is
 (
J
u
ly
 2
0
1
8
) 

• 
O
s
b
o
rn
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 R
M
I 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
–
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
8
 

 

Page 58



M
E
M
B
E
R
S
’ 
A
T
T
E
N
D
A
N
C
E
 R
E
C
O
R
D
 

N
E
IG
H
B
O
U
R
H
O
O
D
S
 &
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
S
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 P
A
N
E
L
 2
0
1
7
 –
 1
8
 

 

 
M
E
E
T
IN
G
 D
A
T
E
S
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 

2
6
/0
6
/2
0
1
7
 

0
7
/0
9
/2
0
1
7
 

0
2
/1
1
/2
0
1
7
 

1
6
/0
1
/2
0
1
8
 

0
1
/0
3
/2
0
1
8
 

0
4
/0
4
/2
0
1
8
 

A
n
d
e
rs
o
n
 

P
  

P
 

P
* 

 
 

 

B
a
l 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

D
a
v
is
 

P
  

P
 

P
 

 
 

 

N
. 
H
o
lle
d
g
e
 

A
p
 
 

P
 

A
p
 

 
 

 

K
e
lly
 

P
  

P
 

A
p
 

 
 

 

M
a
n
n
 

P
  

A
p
 

P
 

 
 

 

P
a
rm
a
r 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

P
le
n
ty
 

P
  

P
 

P
 

 
 

 

R
a
s
ib
 

A
p
 
 

P
 

A
p
 

 
 

 

 S
h
a
ri
f 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
w
in
d
le
h
u
rs
t 

P
  

P
 

P
* 

 
 

 

W
ri
g
h
t 

P
  

P
* 

P
 

 
 

 

  
P
  
 =
 P
re
s
e
n
t 
fo
r 
w
h
o
le
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 
 

P
* 
 =
 P
re
s
e
n
t 
fo
r 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

A
p
 =
 A
p
o
lo
g
ie
s
 g
iv
e
n
 

 
 

A
b
 =
 A
b
s
e
n
t,
 n
o
 a
p
o
lo
g
ie
s
 g
iv
e
n
 

AGENDA ITEM 11

Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the last meeting held on 2nd November 2017
	3 Action Progress Report
	5 Neighbourhood and Housing Scrutiny Overview Indicators
	5 - Appendix A Scrutiny Overview Indicators Dashboard
	5 - Appendix B Response to Rise in Stage 2 Complaints
	5 - Appendix C 'Red Amber Green' Rating Action Sheet

	6 Five Year Plan - Priority 5 Make Best Use of Existing Public Sector Housing Stock
	7 Emergency Plan
	8 Development Initiative Slough Housing
	9 2018/19 Housing Rents And Service Charges
	10 Forward Work Programme
	10 - Appendix A - Work Programme 2017 - 18


